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Wasps Holdings Limited
Chairman's Report for the Year Ended 30 fune 2018

This was our third full year at the Ricoh Arena, a year which saw the Wasps Group continue to invest and mature as a
business. We have buiit on the foundations established in the previous years and | am happy with the progress made
during the year. Total revenue as reported is flat, at £32.8m (2017 as restated: £33.0m), but with underlying revenue
(excluding the impact of knock-out games of £1.6m in 2017) having increased by £1.4m.

As reported last year, the financial covenant relating to EBITDA was not met and a Consent Solicitation meeting was
consequently held on 19 fanuary 2018, when revised covenants were proposed and agreed. | would like to thank the
bondholders for thelr continued support. Following on from this, a detalled Internal financial review was undertaken
and assessed by the auditors resulting in a number of prior year adjustments to reserves and the Consolldated Statement
of Financial Position. The result of this review glves us confidence that our balance sheet is in a robust position to
continue to support our ambitions to invest in and grow the business.

The Wasps rugby team performed exceptionally well throughout the year, reaching the Premiership semi-finals to be
knocked out by the eventual winners, Saracens. | am incredibly proud of the team who fought hard throughout the
season. We have built on the successful 2017/18 season by developing and attracting further world class talent.

In addition, the Wasps Netball team retained their title as back-to-back Vitality Superleague Netball champions, a
wonderful result for the team in its second year.

The Group continues to seek to maximise its use of the Ricoh. The continued engagement with new fans, businesses,
clubs and schools resulted in another successful year of attendances for Wasps and business activities at the Arena.

The investment in the DoubleTree by Hilton hotel during 2015/16 provided further significant returns, with hotel
income up year on year. This year saw us staging a number of events including international rugby union, the Rolling
Stones in concert, Wasps Netball in the Ericsson Indoor Arena and we look forward to hosting further sporting and
entertainment events in the future years.

i am delighted to continue as the Chairman of the Group, supported by Nick Eastwood as Group CEQ, Dai Young as
Director of Rugby and Mark Rigby as President. | would like to thank everyone involved in our organisation, from our
players, to the Board, management, all our staff and to the wider community who have worked so hard and embraced
the changes to make the past year a success. The Group is in a strong position to capitalise on the future opportunities
available to us as one of the UK's leading sports, exhibition, conferencing and entertainment arenas.

Finally, I would like to thank our supporters for their wonderful support throughout last season and 1 look forward to
their continued support for wih@a@promises to be another thrilling season!

7
D A Richardson

Chairman

B R T

e le et o0 L i Tan e Bt Ve

EERSpECOr I

T iy et

b B



Wasps Holdings Limited
Group Chief Executive's Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

I am pleased with the progress made in our third full year at the Ricoh Arena, a move which has proved
transformational for the Club. Although reported operating loss before depreciation, exceptional items and
allocation to non-controlling interests declined from a profit of £1.3m to a loss of £2.1m, the underlying business
is strong. The change in reported profit is due to a number of specific reasons; primarily the impact of knock-out
games in 2017, an increased investment in the rugby squad to ensure that the team remain competitive at the
highest level, and a number of one-off items and balance sheet movements, the total of all these items being
£3.5m. The detailed review set out below provides us with greater clarity and visibility to make optimal decisions

for the group going forward.

The Group continues to establish solid and stable foundations and we will seek to build on these in future years.
Our overriding aim remains to challenge for hanours in the Gallagher Premiership, Eurapean Champions Cup and
Netball Superleague, underpinned by a successful business model as one of the UK’s leading multi-purpose

venues.
GROUP HIGHLIGHTS
Key financial metrics

s Revenues at £32.8m (Wasps: £15.5.m; ACL: £3.6m; IEC: £13.7m});

s Operating loss increased to £6.3m from £2.2m (as restated);

e Operating loss before exceptional items and allocation to non-controlling interests of £(4.4)m (2017:
£(0.3)m as restated);

¢ Increased Operating loss before depreciation, exceptional items and aflocation to non-controlling
interests to £2.1m (2017: profit £1.3m as restated);

e Gross margin unchanged at 33%;

s  Arena value maintained at £60m, (next due for a formal revaluation in 2019);

¢ Consolidated Senior Debt at 30 June 2018 of £37.3m (2017 as restated: £35.5m} mainly owed to Wasps
Finance PLC, Barclays PLC and HSBC PLC;

s Premier Rugby P shares valuation of £9.7m (2017: £9.7m)].

Wasps Holdings (Wasps) Highlights
s Average rugby attendance of 18,775;
s Aviva Premiership Rugby semi-finalists;
» Vitality Superleague Netball champions for the second year running;
e New sponsarship deals signed up with NPawer, Wright Hassall, Under Armour, Pet Xi and Lovell Netball.

* Renewal of Dell Technologies contract

Arena Coventry Limited (ACL) Highlights
s Rolling Stones concert held;
e Casino trading improvement with additional attendances;
e England Wamen'’s and U20’s Rugby Union double-header event;
o ArthurJ Gallagher signed as a commercial partner;
* Heineken and Coca Cola signed as new sponsors for pouring rights.

|EC Experience (IEC) Highlights
o Hotel Revpar increased by 6%;
¢ 39 major exhibitions held (2017: 42};
e Successful concerts hosted for The Rolling Stones and Stepback 80's.




Wasps Holdings Limited

Group Chief Executive's Report for the Year Ended 30 june 2018
SPORT

The Group grew its overall revenue from sport throughout the year. Average attendances for the season for
Premiership and European rugby matches decreased to 18,775 from 19,338 due to the non-recurrence of a home
semi-final. The team finished third in the Premiership, narrowly losing out in the playoff semi-finals to the
eventual winners, Saracens. We were delighted with aur performance in the Premiership and hope to compete
for honours for the 2018/19 season.

The franchise for Wasps Netball enjoyed its second year in existence. The team played in the Vitality Superleague
and achieved another stunning playoff win in the final against Loughborough Lightning. The second-year
investment in the franchise will now lead into the further building of the community programme around netball.
This, combined with the rugby, provides an excellent opportunity to engage with both boys and girls in schools,
clubs and the wider community.

Hospitality and sponsorship had anather good year, which reflects the addition of strong seasonal sales and new
partners signed up in the last few years.

Seasan tickets sales for Rugby and Netball reached a record level, reflecting the strength of the teams.

Central rugby income from PRL and the RFU improved by 6%, due to the new RFU agreement and contracted
Premiership Broadcasting rights. The retail store delivered another successful year of sales, with anfine sales
showing particularly good growth,

The Group will continue to seek to capltalise on its position as the only leading UK conference and event centre
with resident elite sports teams, to bring other sports to the Arena, having hosted the rugby union Women'’s and
U20’s double header event against Ireland in early 2018 and Wasps Netball in the Ericsson Arena during the year.

Engagement with our community remains a core part of our activity and we again exceeded our target of 50,000
active community engagements during the year, conducting over 60,000 engagements. This year has seen some
fantastic achievements across the community programmes, some highlights being our SEND (special educational
needs and disability) programme Playing Advantage which has seen over 40 yaung people take part in a weekly
rugby club providing sporting opportunity outside of school, something that they previously struggled to engage
with. The HITZ programme has gone from strength to strength with over 20 NEETs (not in education, employment
or training) taking part in learning academy and gain English and Maths qualifications and progress to work
experience or even Into employment or further training. Three of our learners were shortlisted at the national
HITZ awards with Jason Kitchin going on to win the Young Achiever Award. Whilst many of our programmes
focuses on schoal age and young people, we aiso have run programmes for all ages and Move Like a Pro was a
fitness programme for males aged 35+ who have lapsed from any regular activity. With over 100 people taking
part in the 12 week programme we have seen some amazing results with a combined weight loss of over 750KG
and a waist reduction of over 12 Metres. More importantly than this, many of the participants are now continuing
to maintain physical activity setting up thelr own touch rugby clubs.
SN

BUSINESS

The capacity of the stadlum is 32,600, and it has over 20,000 sgm of flexible event space, including the 6,000 sqm
Ericsson Exhibition Hall. The Arena contains one of the UK’s largest casinos and an onsite 121-bedroom, four-star
DoubleTree by Hilton hotel, which again grew its revenues. The facllities also Include three onsite restaurants,
five bars and more than 20 retail food and beverage outlets.

ACL turnover reduced year on year in line with expectations, due to fewer concerts and a reduction in naming
rights revenues. The Group continues to work with Grosvenor, the operator of the casino, to build on the
successful synergies already in place. Arena Event Services delivered Increased contribution to the business over
the 2017/18 year, and will continue to develop during the 2018/18 year.
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Woasps Holdings Limited
Group Chief Executive's Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

The Arena is now the only leading UK conference and event centre with a resident elite sports teams, and the
combination of the Wasps brand with the Arena facilities creates significant sponsorship and partnership
synergies, thus providing opportunities for the growth and development of both. The Ericsson Arena and stadium
now include a new high-density WI-Fi network throughout the whole site to provide an enriched experience for
conference, sports events, exhibition and concert attendees. A mabile application for 10S and Android devices
was launched in December 2017 and brought together the Sport, Business and Entertainment elements of the
Arena in one unique offering.

ENTERTAINMENT

The Arena is a leading concert venue with a maximum concert capacity of 40,500. Following on from a busy 2017
schedule, key highlights for the year included a stand-out perfarmance from the Rolling Stones in the bowl and
a Stepback 80’s indoor concert held in the Ericsson Indoor Arena. The events improved overall contribution to
the business and will continue to form a significant part of future growth plans, with the emphasis on stadium
hire events. We are delighted to have been part of the successful bid by Coventry for the City of Culture for 2021
and look forward to developing varlous events with the city over the next few years.

BOND SOLICITATION PROCESS

As was detailed in last year’s accounts the Group failed to meet the ratio of EBITDA to consolidated finance costs
of at least 1.5 to 1.0 as at 30" June 2017 and, as a result, a proposal was put to the Bondholders of Wasps Finance
PLC to walve this breach and amend the covenant to allow for any shareholder contributions to be included
within the Covenant calculation. | would like to thank the bondholders for their support in this matter as the
proposals were approved on 19 January 2018 with 98.8% of the votes cast, voting in favour.

GROUP COMMERCIAL UPDATE

The combination of Wasps and the Ricoh Arena creates unique sponsorship and partnership synergies and
continues to result in a humber of new partnerships. Since the previous year end, new partnership deals have
been signed with Under Armour and Mizuna for playing kit and retail merchandise. The portfalio of high quality
brands grows, with the addition of new partnership agreements with NPower, Wright Hassall, T M Lewin and

Mizuno Netball.

Wright Hassall have agreed a long term deal for them to sponsor the playing kit and provide leading legal and
professional services to the business.

T M Lewin will provide the match day attire for players, staff and coaches.

PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENTS .

As highlighted In the Chairman’s statement a thorough financial review was carried out in 2018. This highlighted
that a number of items held on the balance sheet couid not be substantiated and the move onto the new
accounting system at the end of 2016 resulted in varlous transactions being recognised in the old system after
the statutory accounts had been finalised. This has resulted in a £1.9m pre-tax restatement of prior period
information and opening reserves. The result of this review gives us confidence that our balance sheet is in a
robust position to continue to support our ambitions to invest in and grow the business.

GOING CONCERN

In order to assess the adequacy of the financial facilities available to the Group, the directors have prepared
medium term financial forecasts which show that the Group is dependent upon the financial support of its
ultimate shareholder to remain within its committed lending facilities, and to meet the financial covenants
associated with the Retail Bond. The board of directors and ultimate shareholder are committed to making the
group financially seif-sustainable through a series of initiatives to increase both matchday and non-matchday

revenues and manage costs accordingly.
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Group Chief Executive's Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

The directors of the company have obtained a letter of support from the ultimate shareholder outlining a
continued commitment to the Group and are satisfied that the existing ultimate shareholder support will
continue to be forthcoming. '

As with any company placing rellance on shareholders for financial support, the directors acknowledge that this
letter of support is not legally binding. If uitimate shareholder support should not be forthcoming, the Group at
the present time would have insufficient cash without securing additional funding to meet its ongoing liabilities,
which include the payment of interest by the Group. There Is also a risk that the Retail Bond covenants would
also not be met, in which case the bondholders could call for immediate repayment of the bonds, and the
Company has Insufficient cash to repay the bonds without securing additional funding. However, at the date of
approval of the financial statements, the directors have no reason to believe that ultimate shareholder support
will not be forthcoming.

The directors therefore have a reasonable expectation that the Company has access to adequate resources to
continue to operate as normal for the foreseeable future and have continued to adopt the going concern basis

in preparing the flnancial statements.

In the event that shareholder support Is not forthcoming there would be a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s, and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Group and the Company were
unable to continue as a going concern.

9 November 2018

N | Eastwood

Group Chief Executive
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Wasps Holdings Limited
Strategic Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 30 June 2018.
FAIR REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

The Group
The Group’s principal activity is to play rugby union in the Aviva Premiership and European cup competitions,

and to operate the Arena as a conference, exhibition and events venue. Arena Coventry Limited (ACL) operates
out of the Arena. As at 30 June 2018, ACL owned 77% of IEC Experience Limited (IEC) and given the control
exercised by the Company, is considered a subsidiary. Collectively the Company and these subsidiaries are

referred to as the Group.

The Objective
Our overall objective is to operate the highest quality sport, business and entertainment venue in the Midlands.

The Group objectives are directly linked to the performance of the Wasps rugby squad on the field of play, and
maximising the utilisation of the facilities at the Arena. The squad is based on working strictly within the limits
of the Salary Cap and providing elite sports coaches and elite facilities to improve the team performance year on
year. The Arena consists of 20,000sgm of flexible event space including a 6,000sqm pillar free indoor arena, 121
room hotel and 80 versatile suites which catered for over 800 individual events during the last 12 months. The
playing objective is to continue to compete for honours in the Aviva Premiership and the European Champions
Cup, a goal we believe to be realistic due to the investment in the players, coaches and support staff.

Key Performance Indications (“KPIs"}
The Group measures its perfarmance based on both financial and non-financial KPls. The Group’s KPIs together

with explanations and commentary are as follows:

Comment 2018 2017
League position 1 3rd 1st
Average attendance 2 18,775 19,338
Adjusted operating loss 3 £4.4m £0.3m
Exhibitions held 4 39 42
Hotel Rev Par 5 £52 £49
6 £6.16 £6.41

F&B8 spend per head

1 League position — being the final league position for Wasps; another strong season finished with a loss
to Saracens in the Premliership semi-final.

2 Average attendance - being the average attendance for home games in the Aviva Premiership and
European cup competitions; higher attendances also drive improved match day spending on food and
beverage and merchandise. )

3 Adjusted operating loss — defined as the operating result before exceptional items and allocation to non-
controlling interests; refer to financial performance later in this report

4  Exhibitions held — represents the number of exhibitions that the Arena hosted in the year.

S Hotel Rev Par — defined as the revenue per room available; this is a standard hotel industry
measurement.

6 F&B spend per head - being the average amount spent on food and beverage per person at home rugby

matches.




Wasps Holdings Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 30 june 2018

Hospitality — IEC Experience

IEC strives to provide a best in class catering, exhibition, conference and hospitality service far visitors to the
leisure destination. The contribution to the Group is shown below.

Arena ~ Arena Coventry and Arena Coventry 2006 {a subsidiary of ACL)

ACL has a long-term lease (235 years remaining) with Coventry City Council over the Ricoh Arena. Leases over
other operational space include new rentals, multi-year renewals and new opportunitles; this will combine for a
better than anticipated rental yield. The property was valued in March 2017 at £60m by professional RICS valuers
Gerald Eve LLP. The directors have reviewed this valuation and consider it to still be reasonable. The next external
valuation is due in 20189.

Wasps Rugby

Wasps turnover reduced 5% on the previous year, partly due to the non-reoccurrence of a Premiership home
semi-final. The Company is laoking to grow revenue levels for 2018/19 and beyond. Attendance remains a
significant KPI for the Group. The policy of the Group is to continue to invest in the playing/coaching squad,
whilst strictly adhering to the Salary Cap.

Wasps Netball

The Wasps netball team participated in its second Superieague competition, headed up by Tamsin Greenway as
Director of Netball. The team produced an outstanding performance in its second year, beating Loughborough
Lightning for a second time in the Final at the Copper Box Arena, London. We are immensely proud of the team
performance in their second season and look forward to another successful season. Netball provides an
additional element to the Wasps brand and our presence in the West Midlands community.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Summary
The Group generates its income principally from rugby matches, hospitality, spansorship, central revenues,
conferences, exhibitions and other events. The utilisation of the facilities is paramount to the Group.

2018 2017
(as restated
note 2)
£'m £'m
Revenue 328 330
Cost of sales (22.0) (22.1)
Gross profit 10.8 109
Gross margin . 33% 33%
Other income - 0.2
Administrative expenses before depreclation (12.9) (9.8)
Operating (loss) / profit before depreciation, exceptional 2.1) 13
items and allocation to hon-controlling interests
Depreciation (2.3) (1.6)
Allocation to non-controlling interests {1.3) {1.6)
Exceptional costs {(0.6) (0.3)
Operating loss (6.3) (2.2)
Finance costs : (3.4) (2.5)
Loss before tax {9.7) _{4.7)




Wasps Holdings Limited
Strategic Report for the Year Ended 30 june 2018

Revenues

Group revenue contribution
The Group's revenues comprise the following:

2018 2017

(as restated

note 2)

£'m £'m

Wasps 155 15.8
ACL 3.6 3.6
1EC 13.7 136
Total Revenue 32.8 33.0

Revenue by segment

The diversification of the Group’s business provides both financial stahility and opportunities to drive
complementary revenue streams from each event at the Arena. The information below provides an update and

demonstrates the diversified income streams within the Group:

Segment income 2017/18

a Sport income # Business Income - Entertainment Income + Hotel income % Sponsorship and venue income

Sport

Central rughy income {being mainly broadcasting and central sponsorship revenues) improved aver the previous
year due to the new RFU agreement and contracted Premiership broadcasting rights. Seasonal hospitality sales
and ticket income decreased year on year, due to the non-reoccurrence of a significant contribution from knock-
out games in the prior year. This was offset by recard season ticket sales which grew 19% year on year.

The 2018/19 season will see 17 home Wasps rugby fixtures, nine home Wasps netbali fixtures and Coventry City

Football Club will stage a further minimum 23 home league matches.



Wasps Holdings Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2018
Business

Food and beverage sales decreased year on year, following a decreased spend per head at sporting events and
conferences. Conference and exhibition income performed well with a simifar level of income, and improved
margins for the year.

The improvement in the transport links to the area have seen around 10% of visitors using the new railway
station for events and conferences.

Entertainment

The Arena staged one bowl concert (The Rolling Stones) which saw over 30,000 fans at the event. Indaor concerts
and events included the Stepback 80’s concert. We will continue to seek to attract further events for 2018/19.

Hotel

The DoubleTree by Hilton saw significant growth, Income was 6% up on the 2016/17 year and Revpar finished at
£52. Hotel revenue for the first part of 2018/19 has improved on the equivalent periad in the prior year.

Sponsorship and venue

Sponsorship and partnership income increased year on year with new partnerships and sponsors signed up.
These include Arthur J Gallagher, Scutum, Wright Hassall and Npower who joined the Wasps group of commercial
partners and sponsors.

Cost of sales and administrative expenses

Costs of sales represent the direct costs of staging rugby and football matches and business events at the Arena,
whilst administrative expenses represent the costs of managing the Group. Total costs have increased by 11.4%
as detailed in note 5 and work is ongaing to manage these appropriately.

There has been further investment In the playing squad and coaching staff, the former in line with the increase
in the Salary Cap, which is matched by an increase in funding from Premiership Rugby and the RFU. Our policy is
to invest in the team to the maximum amount stipulated, whilst fully complying with the Salary Cap regulations,
providing the Director of Rugby with the best possible opportunity to achieve success.

indebtedness
Consolidated Senior Debt stood at £37.3m as at 30 june 2018 (2017: as restated £35.5m).

Net debt is defined as bank loans, overdraft, finance company loans, less cash balances. As at 30 June 2018 the
balance was £55.8m {2017 as restated: £48.3m), which comprised Wasps Finance PLC £33.4m {2017: £33.2m),
DA Richardson £18.6m (2017: £12.9m), HSBC PLC £0.2m (2017: £0.5m), asset finance £0.1m (£0.2m) and bank
overdrafts of £3.5m (2017: £1.5m).

Exceptional items and allocation to non-controlling interest

During this and the previous year the Group incurred costs that due to their size and nature were deemed
‘exceptional’. The Group's definition of exceptional is based on the classification of non-recurring items as such
to enable the normal financial performance of the Group to be better understood. During the year costs in
relation to the bond solicitation process and judicial review waork have been deemed exceptional. Last year the
judicial review and additional audit investigation costs have been deemed exceptional.
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Wasps Holdings Limited
Strategic Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

The allocation to non-controlling interest relates to management fees payable to Compass under the IEC
shareholder agreement. This agreement ended after the year end on 14 July 2018.

The Group's exceptional items comprise the following:

2018 2017
£'m £'m
Bond related costs 0.2 -
Judicial review costs (note 30) 04 0.1
Prior auditor review costs - 0.2
Total 0.6 0.3
Finance costs
The Group’s finance costs comprise the following:
2018 2017
(As restated
note 2)
£'m £'m
Loan and overdraft interest 0.2 -
Other interest 0.9 0.2
Interest due to Wasps Finance PLC 23 2.3
Total 3.4 2.5

Valuations

The Group revalued the property located at Judds Lane on which the stadium is located during 2017. The
revaluation brought the value in the financial statements to £60.0m. Management have reviewed the valuation
in the current year and have no reason for the valuation amount to be changed.

The P shares in Premler Rugby Limited have been recognised at their fair value of £9.7m (2017: £9.7m).
Management have reviewed the valuation in the current year and have no reason to change the value. The basis
of this valuation is the Net Present Value of contracted income for Premier Rughy Limited, discounted at 6% and
multiplied by 1.5 times, as prescribed in the Premiership Rugby Shareholders Agreement. This reflects the fair
value of the P shares If sold. .

Prior year adjustments

The Chief Executive’s report has highlighted the prlor year adjustments, which are outlined in the Accounting
policies note 2 to the accounts.

Post balance sheet events

On the 14 July 2018, IEC Experience Limited agreed a fong-term strategic partnership with global hospitality
giants, Delaware North Companies (UK) Hospitality Services Limited. They are a global leader in hospitality with
unique knowledge of working with venues like ourselves both here in the UK and abroad. We very much look
forward to bullding on this partnership. This arrangement ended the joint venture agreement between IEC
Experience Limited and Compass Group UK Limited which was in place for the year ended 30 June 2018 and has
resulted in IEC becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of ACL. The Group would like to thank the Compass Group
for all their hard work and contribution to helping grow the business aver the past four years.

During July 2017 the High Court dismissed a claim that Coventry City Council's extenslon of ACL's lease on the

Ricoh Arena in 2013 represented state aid. In November 2017 the Court of Appeal upheld a challenge on one
aspect of this ruling, and a court hearing was held in June 2018. The directors have taken advice and are satisfied
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

that this claim has no merit. The court decision was released on 12 October 2018 and dismissed the challenge.
On 19 October 2018, the Court of Appeal refused permission to appeal to the Supreme Court.

Going concern

The Group and company are financed by a retail bond issued by Wasps Finance PLC which contains financial
covenants based on the financial performance of the Group. The Chief Executive’s report has already outlined
on pages 5 and 6 the positior in relation to the Group.

Directors’ indemnities

The Group has maintained Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance throughout the year for the benefit of the
Group, the Directors and its officers.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTY
For the Group the principal risks and uncertainties continue to be:

Success of the first team and relegation from the Aviva Premiership

Impact: Reduced revenues that would necessarily involve a reductian in expenditure to compensate.
Mitigation: Continued investment In the playing squad and coaching staff to ensure playing performance is at
the very least maintained.

Reduced funding from the RFU, PRL and main sponsors

Impact: Reduced revenue from central contracts and sponsars.

Mitigation: Continued development of players who will feature in England/International squads thus maximising
certain elements of revenue from the RFU and PRL. Utilising sponsorship money to improve infrastructure and
customer experience thus improving match day spend per head.

Failure to comply with Premlership or RFU regulations or changes in regulations

Impact: Wasps penalised financially for non-conformance to regulations.

Mitigation: Matntain regulation returns and inspection reports as per regulations, particularly in relation to
Salary Cap and minimum standards reporting.

Failure to meet Wasps Finance PLC bond covenants

Impact: Wasps penalised financially through Increased interest rate or bond repayment.

Mitigation: Detailed long-term business plan with sensitivity analysis to support covenants. Risk insurance
policies evaluated and taken where appropriate to support profitability. The formula methodology has been
revised to enable shareholder contributions to be included in the covenant calculations. This assumes continued
ultimate shareholder support as outlined within the going concern statement.

Closure of the Arena due to unforeseen circumstances

Impact: Reduced revenue from events at the Arena.

Mitigation: Insurance to cover lost profits {based on budget) reviewed twice per year for forecast changes and
updated with insurance company.

Valuation of Arena materially lower than revaluation

Impact: Asset cover reduced for Bondholders. .

Mitigation: Use professional valuation companies to provide accurate valuation on a regular basis. Long term
contracts and income growth to support valuation.

Vs G e s e
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Conference and exhibition growth targets not met
Impact: Reduced revenues from conference and exhibition business, resulting in reduced profits.

Mitigation: Provision for long term contracts and dedicated sales and marketing team, providing 12-month order
book and maximising competitive yield and margin.

Approved by the Board on 9 November 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

N J Eastwood
Director



Wasps Holdings Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

The directors present their report and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018.

General overview

In May 2015 Wasps Finance PLC, a sister company to the Group, raised £35m by issuing a Retail Bond on the

London Stock Exchange. The Group {excluding 1EC) is a guarantor to this Retail Bond and have drawn down
£33.8m from Wasps Finance PLC.

A consequence of being the guarantor of the Retail Bond is that the Group Is required to produce these audited
annual financial statements in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards. Therefore, these
financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and its
interpretations adopted by the EU.

Dividends
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2017: £Nit).

Directors of the Group

The directors who held office during the year were as follows:
D A Richardson

N J Eastwood

R N Dawbarn

R W Gray

L N Dallaglio

D J Armstrong

C } Holland

1 CM Parker (resigned 28 February 2018)

Company secretaries

The campany secretaries wha held office during the year were as follows:
N J Eastwood (appointed 1 March 2018)

1 C M Parker (resigned 28 February 2018)

Financial instruments

The financial risk management objectives and palicies of the Graup and the exposure of the Group ta credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk are included in note 26.

Going concern

The Group and Company are financed by a retail bond issued by Wasps Finance PLC which contains financial
covenants based on the financial performance of the Group. Further detail of the position in relation to the
Group is noted within the going concern paragraphs included within the Chief Executive’s report.

Future developments

For the financlal year to June 2019, the Board is concentrating on the further consolidation of the Group's
position.

Disclosure of informatlon to the auditors

Each director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of that information. The
directors confirm that there is no relevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditor is
unaware.
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Wasps Holdings Limited
Directors’ Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Post balance sheet events

On the 14th July 2018, the Company agreed a long-term strategic partnership with global hospitality giants,
Delaware North Companies (UK) Hospitality Services Limited, They are a global leader in hospltality with unique
knowledge of working with venues like ourselves both here in the UK and abroad. We look forward to working
together and building upon this partnership. This arrangement ended the supply agreement with Compass Group
UK Limited which was in place for the year ended 30 June 2018, and as part of this termination Arena Coventry
Limited purchased the 23 8 shares held by the Compass Group.

During July 2017 the High Court dismissed a claim that Coventry City Council's extension of ACL's lease on the
Ricoh Arena in 2013 represented state ald. In November 2017 the Court of Appeal upheld a challenge on one
aspect of this ruling, and a court hearing was held in June 2008. The directors have taken advice and are satisfied
that this claim has no merit. The court decision was released on 12 October 2018 and dismissed the challenge.
On 19 October 2018, the Court of Appeal refused permission to appeal to the Supreme Court.

Re-appointment of auditors

Mazars LLP was appointed auditor during the periad, and will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with
section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

ApproveWo' d on 9 November 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

N J Eastwqod
Director
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Wasps Holdings Limited
Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with applicable taw and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the Group and parent company financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the directors must
not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and the company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that perlod. In preparing these
financial statements, the directors are required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable IFRS’s as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject ta any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company and the Group will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficlent to show and explain
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The board of directors
of Wasps Holdings is committed to ensuring the highest standards across the Group for the benefit of its
shareholders, employees, investors, fans and other stakeholders.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the company’s website. Legislation in the

United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legisiation
in other jurisdictions.
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Wasps Holdings Limited

Opinion

We have audited the Wasps Holdings Limited’s group financial statements and the company financial statements
(the ‘parent company’) for the year ended 30 June 2018 which comprise of the Consolidated Income Statement,
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company Statement of Financial
Position, the Consolidated and Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and Company
Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financlal statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
International Financial Reparting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In aur opinion:

e the financlal statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s
affairs as at 30 June 2018 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

+ the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union; :

o the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006; and

o the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
oplnion.

Material uncertainty relating to going concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements we draw attentlon to note 2 in the financial statements
concerning the company’s ability to continue as a going concern and the uncertainty regarding the ongoing
support of the company’s ultimate shareholder. As stated in note 2 this condition indicates the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The financlal statements do not include adjustments that would result if the company was unable to continue
as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Note 2 to the financial statements details the Directars’ disclosures of the material uncertainty relating to going
concern, The directors of Wasps Holdings Limited have prepared medium term farecasts which covers more than
12 months from the date of signing these financial statements. These medium term forecasts show that Wasps
Holdings Limited continues to be dependent on the financial support of its ultimate shareholder, Derek
Richardson, with financial contributions needed to fund ongoing cash flow requirements and to meet bond
covenants.

The directors are satisfied that ultimate shareholder support will continue to be forthcoming for the foreseeable

future. The directors of Wasps Holding Limited have obtained a letter of support from the ultimate sharehoider,
However, as this letter of support Is not legally binding the directors have drawn attention to the risk that
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Wasps Holdings Limited

ultimate shareholder support is not forthcoming in disclosing a material uncertainty refating to going concern in
the basls of preparation to the financial statements.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with aur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material

misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the .

work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nathing to report in this regard.
Oplnions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinlon, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» theinformatlon given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained

in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’
Repart.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

o the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
or

o certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
s we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 16, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from materiat misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Wasps Holdings Limited

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our

auditor’s report.

Use of the audit report

This report is made solely to the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit wark has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a bady for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Richard Metcalfe
(Senior Statutory Auditor) for and an behalf of Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Tower Bridge House

St Katharine’s Way

London

E1W 1DD

Date: 9 November 2018
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Consolidated Income Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

2018 2017
(as restated
note 2)
Note £'000 £'000
Revenue 4 32,827 32,992
Cost of sales 5 {22,046) {22,097)
' 10,781 10,895
Other income 4 - 158
Administrative expenses 5 {15,200) (11,324)
Operating loss before exceptional items and allocation to {4,418) (271)
non-controlling interest
Exceptional items 6 (603) (300)
Allocation to non-controlling interests 6 (1,299) (1,583)
Operating loss (6,321) (2,154)
Finance costs 7 {3,402) {2,551)
Loss before tax ’ (9,723) (4,705)
Taxation 11 - (1,272)
Loss for the year (9,723) (5,977)
Loss attributable to:
Owners of the company {9,696) {5,919)
Non-cantroiling Interests {27) {58)
{9,723) (5,977)

The above results were derived from continuing operations.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Note

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year that will not be
reclassified to profit and loss
Surplus on revaluation of long leasehold property 12

Income tax effect 11

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

Surplus on revaluation of available for sale financial assets 15
11

Income tax effect

Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year

Total comprehensive (expense)/income attributable to:
Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2018 2017
(as restated

note 2)

£'000 £'000
(9,723) {5,977)

- 11,839

- {1,662)

- 10,177

- 97

- 97
{9,723) 4,297
(9,696) 4,355
(27) (58)
(9,723) 4,297




Wasps Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 30-June 2018
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2018 2017
(as restated
note 2}
Note £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 67,605 69,515
intangible assets 13 885 780
Avallable for sale financial assets 15 9,725 9,725
78,215 80,020
Current assets
Inventories 16 509 430
Trade and other receivables 17 7,665 6,064
Cash and cash equivalents 18 - -
8,174 6,494
Total assets 86,389 86,514
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 19 {776} (776)
Share Premium (6,341) (6,341)
Revaluation reserve (33,802) (33,802)
Capital contribution reserve {638) -
Available for sale reserve (8,071) (8,071)
Other reserve 1,879 1,764
Accumulated losses 48,504 38,923
Equity attributable to owners of the company 755 (8,303)
Non-controlling interests (586) (613)
Total Equity 169 (8,916)
Nan-current liabilities
Loans and other creditors 20 {51,841) {46,364)
Other payables 23 (1,879) (1,764)
Deferred tax liabilities 11 (6,936} (6,936)
Deferred Income 24 {4,867} (5,608)
(65,523} (60,672)
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 (12,668) {10,299)
Loans and borrowings 20 {4,026) (1,942)
Deferred income 24 (4,341) {4,685)
’ (21,035) (16,926)
Total liabilities (86,558) {77,598)
Total equity and liabilities (86,389) (86,514)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Approved by the Board on 9 November 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

N J Eastwood
Director
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018
(Registration number: 04187289)

2018 2017
(as restated
note 2)
Note £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 391 1,137
Investments 14 5,917 5,917
Avallable for sale financial assets 15 9,725 9,725
16,033 16,779
Current assets
Inventories 16 231 166
Trade and other receivables 17 4,637 3,283
Cash and cash equivalents 18 - -
4,868 3,449
Total assets 20,901 20,228
Equity and Liabllities
Equity
Share Capital 19 (776) (776)
Share Premium (6,341) (6,341)
Capital contribution reserve (554) -
Available for sale reserve (8,071) (8,071)
Accumulated losses 54,462 47,263
Total Equity 38,720 32,075
Non-current liabllities
Loans and borrowings 20 (46,275) {40,169)
(46,275) (40,169)
Current liabliitles
Trade and other payables 23 {6,939) (7,768)
Loans and borrowings 20 (3,869) (1,243)
Deferred income 24 {2,538) (3,123)
‘ (13,346) (12,134)
Total liabilities (59,621) (52,303)
Total equity and liabilities (20,901) {20,228}

The Company’s loss for the year was £7.2m (2017: £4.3m as restated).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Approved by the Board on @ November 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

N J Eastwood

Director
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Share Share  Other Capital Revaluation Available Accumulated Equity Non- Total
Capital Premium reserve Contribution reserve  forsale losses attributable controlling
reserve Reserve toownersof Interests

.

the company

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 3
H
Asat 1July 2016 {as praviously i
reported) 776 6,341 - - 23,833 7,974 (32,412) 6,512 671 7,183
Impact of prior period restatement :
- . . . . - 4 i
(nate 2) {1,656} {908} {2,564) {2,564) i
Asat 1 July 2016 (as restated) 776 6,341 (1,656) - 23,833 7,974 {33,320) 3,948 671 4,619 )
Loss for the year(as previously
- . - - - - 74 ,809 B
reparted) (3,748) (3,748} (61) {3,809) ;
1 tof pri i
mpact of prior period restatement ) ; A A a ) (2,171) 2,171 3 (2,168) i
{note 2) ;
Loss for the year (as restated) - - . - - - (5,919) (5,919) (58) {5,977) i
Revaluation of Arena - - - - 10,177 97 - 10,274 - 10,274
h
Total comprehensive income / ) . A ) 10,177 07 (5,919) 4,355 (58) 4,297 :
(expense)
Transfer between reserves - - (108} - (208) - 316 - - -
Asat30June 2017 (asrestated) 776 6,341 (1,764) - 33,802 8,071 (38,923) 8,303 613 8,916
Loss for the year . - - - - - (9,696) (9,696} (27) (9,723)
Capital contribution - - . 638 - - - 638 - 638
Total comprehensive income / .
(expanse) - . - 638 - - {9,696) {3,058) (27) (9,085} ;
Transfer between reserves - - (115) - - - 115 - - . :
Asat 30 June 2018 776 6,341 (1,879) 638 33,802 8,071 (48,504) {755) 586 (169)

Other reserve represents the discounted future liabliity payable to Compass Group in June 2030 (see note 3 for detail). p

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

As at1July 2016 (as previously reported)
Impact of prior period restatement (note 2)
As at 1 July 2016 (as restated)

Loss for the year {as previously reported)

Impact of prior period restatement (note 2)
Loss for the year (as restated)

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive Income/(expense)

As at 30 June 2017 {as restated)

Loss for the year
Capital contribution
Total comprehensive income / (expense)

As at 30 June 2018

Share Share Capital Available for Accumulated Total

Capital Premlum contribution sale Reserve losses
reserve

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

776 6,341 - 7,974 (42,858) (27,767)

- - - {43) {(43)

776 6,341 - 7,974 (42,901) (27,810)

- - - - (3,862) (3,862)

- - - - (402) (402)

- - - - (4,264)  (4,264)

- . - 97 {97) -

- - - 97 (4,361) (4,264)

776 6,341 - 8,071 (47,263) _ (32,075)

- . - - (7499)  (7,199)

- - 554 - - 554

- - 554 - {7,199] (6,645)

776 6,341 554 8,071 (54,462)  (38,720)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year
Adjustments ta cash flows from non-cash items
Depreciation and amartisation 12,13
Finance costs 7
Taxation 11
Working capital adjustments
Increasein inventories 16
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables 17
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables ) 23
(Decrease) /increasein deferred income 24

Net cash flows used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing actlvities

Acquisitions of Intangible assets

Acquisitions of property plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal Assets under construction
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Proceeds from other borrowing draw downs
Repayment of other borrowing

Net cash flows generated from financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 lune (note 20)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2018 2017
(as restated
note 2)
£'000 £'000
{9,723) (5,977)
2,270 1,602
3,402 2,551
- 1,272
(4,051) (552)
(79) (145)
899 (582)
199 {2,152)
1,085 2,003
(1,947) (1,428)
(218) -
(883) (1,642)
636 -
(465) {1,642)
(2,534) (2,328)
5,167 5,182
(2,141) (1,606)
492 1,248
{1,920) (1,822)
(1,543) 279
(3,463) (1,543)

s s a4




Wasps Holdings Limited

Company Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Note

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year

Adjustments to cash flows from non-cash ftems

Depreciation 12
Finance costs

Income tax credit

Working capital adjustments

Increasein inventories 16
Increase in trade and other receivables 17
Increasein trade and other payables 23
{Decrease) / increase in deferred income 24

Net cash flows used in operating activities

Cash flows from Investing actlvitles

Acquisitions of property plant and equipment 12
Disposal of assets under construction

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Proceeds from other borrowing draw downs
Repayment of other barrowing

Net cash flows generated from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 june (note 20)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2018 2017
(as restated
note 2)
£'000 £'000
{7,199) {(4,264)
426 366
2,122 1,423
(4,651) (2,475)
(65) (6)
1,145 {1,230)
(829) 346
{585) 1,713
{4,985) (1,652)
(165) (830)
485 -
320 (830)
(1,453) (1,308)
4,968 2,903
(1,533) (281)
1,982 1,314
(2,683) {1,168)
(1,161) 7
{3,844) (1,161)




Wasjps Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

1 General information

The company is 3 private company limited by share capital incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.
The address of its registered office is:

Ricoh Arena

Judds Lane

Coventry

CV6 6AQ.

2 Accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The Group and Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and IFRS Interpretations Committee ("IFRS IC") Interpretations as adopted by the
European Union and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates
The principal accounting policies applled in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to ali the years presented, uniess otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with adopted IFRSs and under historical cost
accounting rules, as modified by the revaluation of land and buildings and available for sale financial assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. it also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies.

The areas involving a larger degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
slgnificant to the Group financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

Prior year restatements

In the financial statements of the prior year £210k had been incorrectly recognised too early as revenue and
has been reversed, resulting In a reduction in turnover and a reduction in Debtors of £59k and an Increase in
accruals and deferred income of £151k. In addition, insurance related costs of £132k, employment costs of
£88k, and various sundry costs of £283k were missed or held as prepayments and have been added to cost of
sales and administration with a corresponding reduction in prepayments (£195k] and increase in creditors and
accruals (£308k). Expenditure previously capitalized of 53k has been charged to administration and assets
reduced.

As has been highlighted in Wasps Finance Plc, transaction costs of £808k incurred by Wasps Holdings Limited
when the Bond was issued were written off in the period to June 2016. it has subsequently been identified that
they should have been capitalised and written off over the period of the Bond liability. An unamortised
transaction costs prepayment £678k has therefore been added back to reserves at 30 June 2016 and a charge
of £115k included in the prior year profit and loss account accordingly. This is held as a reduction of the loan
with Wasps Finance Plc and will be written off over the remaining life of the Wasps Finance plc Bond.

In the financial statements of the prior year an option available to Compass plc to require Arena Coventry Ltd
to acquire it's B shares In IEC Experience Ltd for £4.0m had been highlighted in note 24 as a future contingent
liability. it has been Identified that this option crystalises in 2030 and should have been recognized as an actual
itability discounted at an appropriate discount rate. A deferred creditor has therefore been created as at March
2016 of £1.656m and an annual charge included in finance costs in the prior year of £107k using a discount
rate of 6.5%.
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

A detailed financial review of the balance sheet assets and fiabllities also highlighted a number of histarical
transactions from 2015/16 or earlier, that should have been written off which have been identified foliowing
a change of accounting systems, These relate to MTV and concert costs of £413k, employment costs £193k,
accrued interest £179k purchasing income of £162k, sundry prepayments £446k, rent collection of £34k,
acquisition costs £41k, ledger take on balance differences of £79k, and historical accrued income £114k. These
have resulted in a reduction in opening reserves of £907k and changes to debtars (£149k), trade creditors
(£11k), prepayments and accrued income (£1,022k), accruals (E442k), and creditors (£38).

Deferred consideration relating to the initial purchase of ACL of £200k was identified that should have been
accrued for at the time of purchase. This has resulted in the creation of additional goodwill on acquisition
(£200k), the creation of a deferred creditor (£133k) and a write back of payments previously charged to profit
of E77k.

Also, in the consolidated financial statements of the prior year, a deferred tax asset of £1,175k was recognised
in respect of cumulative trading losses of Arena Coventry Ltd. It was incorrectly assumed that these tax losses
would be available for group relief. To correct this error, the prior year comparatives have been adjusted to
reduce the deferred tax asset recognised by £1,175k, as set out in note 11.

In summary, the year ended 30 June 2017 the pre-tax profit and loss for the year has been reduced by £993k
and the year ended 30 June 2016 and prlor years by £307k.

Standards adopted in the year
The following amendments to standards issued by the I1ASB have been adopted by the Group in the year with

no significant impact:

¢ |AS 12 ~Income taxes: Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets far Unrealised Losses
e |AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative

Standards issued but not yet effective

Impact of transition to IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 (effective 1 July 2018)
There are no materlal adjustments anticipated from transition to IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 effective from 1 July 2018.
The Group has decided not to early adopt these new standards.

Impact of transition to IFRS 16 (effective 1 july 2019)

IFRS 16 (effective 1 July 2019) eliminates the classification of leases as either operating or finance leases and
introduces a single accaunting madel. it will require the Group to recognise substantially all of its current
operating lease commitments on the Statement of Financial Position,

The Group has performed an impact assessment by collating all lease information and assessing relevant
information against the IFRS 16 requirements. Material judgements and estimates are required in identifying
and accounting for leases, determining the discount rate, as well as choosing the transition methodology. The
Group is continuing to assess the impact of these, and based on current information and range of transition
methodologles, expects a material impact to the statement of financial position’s assets in the range of £0.1m
to £0.2m, labilitles in the range of £0.1m to £0.2m, and reserves in the range of £0.1m to £0.2m. However,
due to the various judgements that remain under consideration and the possibllity of entering into new leases
or exiting existing leases without replacement between the date of the Annual Report and date of adoption of
IFRS 16 on 1 July 20189, the final adjustment may be materially different to the ranges mentioned above.

The Group has decided not to early adopt these new standards.
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Company loss for the year

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the holding company’s profit and loss account has not
been included in these financial statements. The Group's loss for the year includes the Company's loss for the
year of £7.2m (2017 as restated: £4.3m).

Going concern
The Financial Reporting Council's 'Guidance on the Going Concern Basis of Accounting and Reporting on

Solvency and Liquidity Risks’ (April 2017) provides guidance to directars on disclosures regarding the adoption
of the going concern basis of accounting,

The receipt of interest receivable and compliance with the Retail Bond financial covenants for Wasps Finance
PLC (the "Company”) are dependent upon the performance of the Wasps Holdings Group of companies, and
therefare this note refers to the performance of that Group.

The Wasps Holdings Group (the “Group”) has net liabilities of £0.2m (2017 as restated net assets of £8.9m) but
made a loss of £9.7m (2017 as restated: £6.0m) in the current year and has net current liabilities of £12.9m
{2017 as restated: £10.4m).

In order to assess the adequacy of the financial facilities avallable to the Group, the directors have prepared
medium term financial forecasts which show that the Group is dependent upon the financial support of its
ultimate shareholder to remain within its committed lending facilities, and to meet the financial covenants, as
amended in January 2018, associated with the Retall Bond. The board of directors and ultimate shareholder
are committed to making the Group financially self-sustainable through a series of initiatives to increase both
matchday and non-matchday revenues and manage costs accordingly.

The directors of the company have obtained a letter of support from the ultimate shareholder outlining a
continued commitment to the Group and are satisfied that existing ultimate shareholder support will continue
to be forthcoming.

As with any company placing reliance on shareholders for financial support, the directors acknowledge that
this tetter of support is not legally binding. If ultimate shareholder support shouid not be forthcoming, the
Group would have insufficient cash without securing additional funding to meet its ongoing liabilities, which
include the payment of interest by the Group. There is a risk that the Retail Bond covenants would also not be
met in which case the Bondholders could call for immedlate repayment of the bonds, and the Company has
insufficient cash to repay the bonds without securing additional funding. However, at the date of approval of
the financial statements, the directors have no reason to bellieve that ultimate shareholder support will not be
forthcoming.

The directors therefore have a reasonable expectation that the Company has access to adequate resources to
continue to operate as normal for the foreseeable future and have continued to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements.

In the event that shareholder support is not forthcoming there would be 3 material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s, and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Group and the Company were
unable to continue as a going concern.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolldate the financial statements of the company and its subsidiary
undertakings drawn up to 30 June 2018.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns fram its involvement with the entity and has the abillity to affect
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thase returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. [dentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilitles assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest they acquire on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of

the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liahility
is recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent conslderation that Is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is

accounted for within equity.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also ellminated.

Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and provision

of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of sales/value added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when:
¢ The amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
e itis probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
e and specific criteria have been met for each of the company activities.

Revenue is recognised in respect of match-day income, including season tickets, match-day tickets, executive
boxes, hospltality packages and other match-day Income, when the relevant match takes place.

N

For annual income streams such as central funding and sponsorship arrangements, revenue is recognised in
equal instalments across the relevant period.

Sponsorship, rental and service charge income are recognised over the period that services are offered.
Hospitality, catering and facilities management services income is recognised at the point that the services are

provided.

Income received relating to conference and exhibitions in future periods is included as deferred income until
the revenue recognition criteria are met.

Revenue received in relation to license fees is included in deferred income and released to income over the
life of the license.

Other income
Risk mitigation insurance policies are assessed and taken out where appropriate to better predict profitability

across the Group. The income is recognised where the outcome of the mitigation event is certain.

31




Wasps Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. in
this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management perlodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations In which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. it establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities,

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts In the Group consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not
accounted far if it artses from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
cambination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
batance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability Is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temparary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available agalnst which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

Oeferred income tax assets and liabilitles are offset when there is a legally enforceabie right to oifset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment excluding the Arena leasehold is stated in the statement of financial position
at cost, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes directly attributable incremental costs incurred in their
acquisition and installation.

Land and buildings comprise mainly the Arena. The Arena is shown at fair value, based on valuations by external
independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for bulldings. Valuations are performed every 2 years by
independent valuers and reviewed by management in the Intervening years, to ensure that the fair value of a
revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount. Any accumulated depreciation at the date
of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to
the revalued amount of the asset. All other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Histarical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquilsition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item wili flow to the Group and the
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cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial year in which they are

incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of the Arena are credited to other comprehensive
income and shown as revaluation reserves in shareholders’ equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of
the same asset are charged in other comprehensive income and debited against revaluation reserves directly
in equity; all other decreases are charged to the income statement. Each year the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the income statement, and
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is transferred from ‘retained earnings’ to ‘revaluation reserve’.

Depreciation
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight -line method to allocate

their cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asset class Depreciation method and rate

Land and buildings - Arena Over the life of the lease

land and buildings - Other Over the life of the lease

Fixtures, fittings and equipment Between 2% and 50% per annum on a straight-line basis

The assets’ residual values and useful llves are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrylng amount Is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘Administrative expenses’ in the income statement.

When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in other reserves are transferred to retalned earnings.

Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the consideration transferred,

the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Identifiable net assets acqulred. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured at fair
value is less than the falr value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the
CGUs, or Groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or Group
of units to which the goodwill Is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances Iindicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwilll is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Intangible assets — software costs
Intanglble assets — software costs are initially measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and

impairment losses,

These assets are amortised (and charged to administrative expenses) over its estimated useful life when the
assets are completed and ready for use, as assessed by management. The estimated useful life of capltalised

software costs is 3-S years.
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Investments In subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid

Investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for conference and exhibitions sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initlally at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for the
impairment of trade recelvables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect ali amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.

inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out {FIFO) method.

The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour
costs and those overheads that have been incurred In bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. At each reporting date, Inventories are assessed for impairment. If inventory is impaired, the
carrying amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell; the impalrment loss Is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Trade payables
Trade payables are abligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabllities if payment is due within one year

or less {or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised Initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowlings are recognised initially at fair value (usually recorded at the amount of proceeds received), net of
transaction costs. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the difference between the
proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the amount due on redemption being recognised as a charge to the
income statement over the period of the relevant borrowing.

Interest expense Is recognised on the basls of the effective interest methad and is included in finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settiement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Operating leases
Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as

operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the perlod of the lease.
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Rental income
Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue

in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in
the period in which they are earned.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other

resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of Issuing the equity instruments. If payment is
deferred and the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis.

Defined contribution pension obligation

A deflned contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contributions are paid into a separate entity
and has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hald sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For deflned cantribution plans contributions are paid publicly or privately administered pension insurance
plans on a mandatory or contractual basis. The contributlons are recognised as employee beneflt expense
when they are due. If contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is recognised

as an asset.

Financial assets

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categaries: loans and recelvables, and avaliable for sale.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classiflcation of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financlal assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and
receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet.

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Avallable-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are inciuded in non-current assets unless the investment matures
or management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date - the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to recelve cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of

ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value.

Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’
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category Is presented in the income statement within ‘finance costs’ in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the income statement as part
of other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the falr value of financial assets classified as available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets ls impaired and
impairment lasses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of Impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors are experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or econamic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

For loans and recelvables category, the amount of the loss Is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement. if a loan
or held-to-maturity investment has a varlable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any Impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment an the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impalrment loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is Impaired.

Exceptional items

In order to improve the understanding of the financial statements, the Directors have identified separately, on
the face of the income statement, those items of income and charge which by their size, nature and/or
incidence are exceptional to the financial statements for the year.
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3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
Including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical judgements in applying the Groups accounting policies

Going Concern
The going concern assumptions have been detailed in note 2, Accounting Policies, and the critical judgements

outlined here are all based upon that policy.

Control of 1EC Experience Limited ("1EC")
Assessing whether the Group cantrols |EC requires judgment. The Group holds 77% of the voting rights of IEC

and has a 67% majority representation on the board but through the shareholders agreement there a number
of decisions that require unanimous consent of all the shareholders. The Group has assessed that the decisions
that require unanimous consent glve protective rights only and that the control of the day to day operating
decisions and strategic financial decisions is retained by the Group. Therefore, the Group considers that IEC is
a subsidiary of the Wasps Holdings Limited and the resulits of IEC are included in the Group financial statements.

Note - as at 14 July 2018, IEC became a fuily owned subsidiary of ACL as a result of the purchase of 23 8 Shares
from Compass. See note 30 for further information,

Classification of the P share investment in Premier Rughy Limited ("PRL") as an "avallable-for-sale” financial
asset .

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 39 to determine the classification of the P share investment in PRL. This
determination requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group has evaluated that the P
Share investment in PRL does not meet the definition of the other classes of financial assets within the scope

of IAS 39 as;

* the investment is not held for short term investing sa it is not held for trading;
* there is no maturity date so it is not held for maturity, and
« the investment is not a loan or receivable as payments are not fixed.

Therefore, the Group considers the P Share investment in PRL to be an “available-for-sale” financial asset and
have recognised this in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates wil,

by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amaunts of assets and liabllities within the next financial

year are addressed below.

Valuation of the Arena
The Group assesses the value of Arena on an annual basis In accordance with the accounting palicy stated in

note 2. This valuation follows the principles of {FRS 13 and Is based on an income approach. This approach
requires estimation of the future income streams, length of the leasehold and a number of other market-based
assumptions. Any changes In these assumptions will impact the carrying value of the Arena. The Arena was
revalued as at 31* March 2017 by an independent valuer, Gerald Eve LLP. This valuatlon was at a point in time
and does not reflect changes in the business since that date. Management have prepared forecasts for future
years which support the carrying value of the Arena. The projections show a continued improvement in the
underlying trade which If not achieved could resuit in a downward revaluation, The next formal valuation Is

due in 2019.
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Compass Group investment in IEC

In 2012, ACL entered into an agreement whereby Compass Group purchased a 23% shareholding In IEC for
£4m, which allowed for further infrastructure investment in the Arena. Compass had been granted the
irrevacable right to exercise a put option at a stated price at the occurrence of an option event. If no option
event occurs before 30 June 2030, the contract requires ACL to purchase Compass Group’s 23% share for £4m.
This future liablility has been recognised on the balance sheet and discounted at 6.5%.

4 Revenue and other income

The analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from continulng operations is as follows:

Spartincome

Business income
Entertainment income

Hotel income

Sponsorship and venue income

Other income

2018 2017

(as restated

note 2)

£'000 £'000
16,720 16,180
9,981 10,551
1,278 1,155
2,293 2,070
2,555 3,036
32,827 32,992
- 158

Sponsorship and venue income includes £467k (20171 £467k) in respect of the release of deferred income for

license fees received in advance.

Other income in the prior year relates to contract insurance revenue received.

S Expenses by nature

The analysis of the Group's expenses by nature from continuing operations is as follows:

Wages and salaries

Food, drink and bought in goods and services
Heat, light and power

Repairs and maintenance

Rent and rates

Event / Match day related

Legal and professional

Depreciation of fixed and intangible assets
Ticketing

Marketing

Retail

Insurance

Selling and Administration

Other

Total

2018 2017
{As restated

note 2}

£'000 £'000
13,394 12,342
9,349 8,768
1,974 2,067
1,031 641
354 137
768 1,416
496 319
2,270 1,602
252 365
1,154 1,403
671 555
546 327
1,508 728
3,479 2,751
37,246 33,421
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6 Exceptional items and Allacation to non-contralling interests

2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Bond related costs 223 -
Judicial review costs (nate 30) 380 93
Prlor auditor review costs - 207
Total 603 300

The Group's definition of exceptional includes the identification of non-recurring costs or revenues that enables
the normal financial performance of the Group to be better understood. During the current year costs in
relation to the bond solicitation process and continuing judicial review work have been deemed exceptional;
and in the prior year the additional audit investigation and Judicial review costs were deemed exceptional.

The allocation to non-controlling interest relates to the share of profits payable to Compass under the IEC

Shareholders Agreement.

7 Finance costs

2018 2017

(As restated

note 2)

£'000 £'000

Loan and overdraft interest 259 53
Other Interest 868 223
Interest due to Wasps Finance PLC 2,275 2,275
Total 3,402 2,551

8 Staff costs
The aggregate payroll costs {including directors' remuneration) were as follows:

2018 2017

{as restated

note 2}

£'000 £'000

Wages and salaries 11,946 11,147
Soctal security costs 1,218 1,057
Pension costs, defined contribution scheme 230 138
13,394 12,342

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group (including directors) during the year,

analysed by category was as follows:
2018 2017
No No
Players 52 53
Management and administration 181 153
233 206
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9 Directors’ and key management remuneration
The directors' remuneration for the year was as follows:

2018 2017

£'000 £'000

Aggregate emoluments 390 777
Contributions pald to money purchase scheme 8 16
398 793

During the year the number of directors who were recelving benefits was as follows:

In respect of the highest paid director:

2018 2017

£000 E'000

Remuneration 170 370
Contributions paid to money purchase scheme 1 1
171 371

Key management includes the statutory directors of the Group and other members of the executive board.
The compensation paid or payable to key management far employee services is shown below:

2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Aggregate emoluments 1,116 1,189
Contributions paid to money purchase scheme 15 16
1,131 1,205
10 Auditor’s remuneration

2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Audit of these financial statements 39 203

Audit of the financial statements of subsidlarles of the
company pursuant to [egislation 51 34
90 237

Prior year costs relate to audit fees incurred with PWC LLP.
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11 Income Tax

2018 2017

(as restated

note 2)

£'000 £'000

Current tax - -
Deferred tax:

On tax loss for the year : (1,368) (668)

Impact of change in tax rate - 454

Adjustment in respect of prior periods 1,368 1,486

- 1,272

Total tax charge

The tax on loss before tax for the year is different to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (2018 -
the same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK) of 19% (2017 — 19.75%). The differences are

reconciled below:

2018 2017

{as restated

note 2)

£'000 £'000

Loss before tax (9,723) {4,705)

Corporation tax at standard rate (1,847) (929)

Increase from effect of capital allowances depreciation 361 49

Increase/(decrease) from effect of expenses not deductible In

determining taxable loss 118 16

Recognition of previously unrecognlzed tax losses 1,368 311

Remeasurement of deferred tax ~ change in tax rate - 650
Derecognition af losses braught forward for which deferred tax

asset was previously recognised - 1,175

- 1,272

Total tax charge
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Deferred tax

Group - Deferred tax assets and (liabilitles)

2018

Revaluation of property
Available-for-sale financial assets
Trading losses

2017

Revaluation of property
Available-for-sale financial assets
Trading losses

Deferred tax movement during the year:

Revaluation of property
Avaitable-for-sale financial assets
Trading losses

Net tax Habilittes

Deferred tax movement during the prior year:

Revaluatiaon of property
Avallable-for-sale financtal assets
Trading losses

Net tax liabliities

Asset Liability
£'000 £'000
- (6,936)
- (1,654)
1,654 -
1,654 (8,590)
Asset Liability
£000 £'000
- (6,936)
- (1,654)
1,654 -
1,654 (8,590)

At 1July 2017 Recognised in other

Credit to the income At 30 June 2018

comprehensive statement
Income
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
(6,936) . - (6,936)
(1,654) : - (1,654
1,654 - 1,654
(6,936) - . {6,936)

At 1July 2016 Recognised in other

Credit to the income At 30 June 2017

comprehensive statement
Income
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
{5,274) (1,662) - {6,936)
(1,751) 97 - {1,654)
2,926 - {1,272) 1,654
(4,099) {1,565} (1,272) {6,936)

There are £47.8m of unused tax losses (2017: £33.1m) for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the

statement of financial position.

There is an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £2.9m relating to unclaimed capital allowances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Deferred tax

Wasps Holdings Limited

Company - Deferred tax assets and (liabilities)

2018

Avaitable-for-sale financial assets
Trading losses

2017

Available-for-sale financial assets
Trading losses

Deferred tax movement during the year:

Avallable-for-sale financial assets
Trading losses
Net tax liabilities

Deferred tax movement during the prior year:

Available-for-sale financial assets
Trading losses
Net tax liabilitles

Assat Liability
£°000 £'000

- (1,654)
1,654 -
1,654 (1,654)
Asset Liability
£€'000 £'000

- (1,654)
1,654 -
1,654 (1,654)

At 1 July 2017

Recognised in other

Charge to the income

At 30 June 18

comprehensive statement
Income
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
(1,654) - (1,654)
1,654 - - 1,654

At1July 2016

Recognised in other

Charge to the income

At 30 June 17

comprehensive statement
income
£000 £'000 £0600 £'000
{1,751) 97 - {1,654)
1,751 - (97} 1,654
- 97 {97) -

There are £38.3m of unused tax lossas (2017: £32.9m) for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the

statement of financial position.
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12 Property, Plant & Equipment
Group
Long-term Other land Fixtures, Assetsinthe Total
leasehold and buildings - fittings and course of ;
property leasehold  equipment construction

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation

L e AR I e

At 1 July 2016 48,500 250 11,888 352 60,930

Additions - - 1,242 400 1,642

Revaluation surplus 11,500 . - - 11,500
Transfer - 3,206 (3,180) (26) -
At 30 June 2017 60,000 3,456 9,950 726 74,132 '
At 1 July 2017 (as reported - note 2) 60,000 3,456 9,950 726 74,132
At1)uly 2017 {impact of restatement - note «'
2) - - (201) 201 - {
Transfer to Intangible assets - note 13 - - - (391) (391)

At1uly 2017 (as restated - note 2) 60,000 3,456 9,749 536 73,741

Disposals - - - (636) (636) %
Additions - 51 732 100 883
At 30 June 2018 60,000 3,507 10,481 - 73,988

Acaumulated Depreciation

At 1 july 2016 194 231 2,538 - 2,963

Revaluation (339) - - - (339) '
transfer - 657 (657) - - ;
Charge for the year 208 15 1,379 - 1,602 :
At 30 June 2017 63 803 3,260 - 4,226
At 1 July 2017 (as reported - note 2) 63 903 3,260 - 4,226 ‘
At 1 july 2017 (impact of restatement - note :
2 : : : :
Transfer to Intangible assets - note 13 - - - - -
At 1 July 2017 {as restated - note 2) 63 903 3,260 - 4,226
Charge for the year 251 346 1,560 - 2,157
Transfer to Intangible assets - note 13 - - - - -
At 30 June 2018 314 1,249 4,820 - 6,383 e

Carrying Value

At 30 June 2018 59,686 2,258 5,661 - 67,605
At 30 June 2017 ; 59,937 2,553 6,489 536 69,515 !
At 1)uly 2016 48,306 19 9,350 352 58,027

The net book value of tangible fixed assets held under finance leases as at 30 June 2018 was £138k (2017:
£38k). N i

The Company revalued the Arena during the priar year, this was performed by professional valuers, Gerald Eve
LLP as at 31 March 2017, and which valued the Arena leasehold interest at £60m. The valuation was carried
out in accordance with RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards. Management have prepared forecasts for
future years which support the carrying value of the Arena In the current year and have no reason for the
valuation amount to be changed or differ from Its fair value. In the absence of level 1 and 2 information (prices ;
based on quoted information), the valuation of the Arena has been based using the best information avallable :
to management (level 3). The next formal valuation is due in 2019. !

The Group {excluding IEC} are guarantors of the Retail Bond held within Wasps Finance PLC. The bond raised is
secured against the leasehold property.
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Property, Plant & Equipment

Company

’ Land and Fixture, Assetsin the Total

Buildings  fittings and course of
equipment construction
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 July 2016 250 957 352 1,559
Additions - 671 159 830
Transfers - 26 {26) -
At 30 June 2017 250 1,654 485 2,389
At 1July 2017 250 1,654 485 2,389
Disposals - - (485) (485)
Additions - 165 - 165
At 30 June 2018 250 1,819 - 2,069
Accumulated Depreciation
At1luly 2016 231 655 - 886
Charge for the year 15 351 - 366
At 30 june 2017 246 1,006 - 1,252
At 1 july 2017 246 1,006 - 1,252
Charge for the year 4 422 - 426
At 30 June 2018 250 1,428 - 1,678
Carrying Value
At 30 June 2018 - 391 - 391
At 30 June 2017 4 648 485 1,137
At 1 July 2016 19 302 352 673
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13 Intangible Assets

Total {as
restated
Software costs Goodwill note 2)
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 July 2016 (as reported) - 189 189
At 1 luly 2016 (impact of restatement note 2) - 200 200
At 1 July 2016 (as restated note 2) - 389 389
Transfers from tangible fixed assets (note 12) 391 - 391
At 1 July 2017 391 389 780
Additions 218 - 218
At 30 June 2018 609 389 998
Amortisation
At 1 July 2017 - - -
Charge for the year 113 - 113
Revaluation - - -
At 30 June 2018 113 - 113
Net Book Value
At 30 June 2018 496 389 885
At 30 June 2017 391 389 780
At 30 June 2016 - 389 389

The net book value of intangible assets held under finance leases as at 30 June 2018 was £387k {2017: nil).

Goodwill represents the benefits and synergies acquired by the Graup as a result of the acquisition of Arena
Coventry Limited on 8 October 2014. Management have prepared forecasts and cashflow projections based upon
the value in use method, using a discount rate of 6.5% and a steady state 2% increase in underlying profits and
determined that no adjustments are required.
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14 Investments in subsidiaries

Group subsidiaries
Details of the group subsidiaries as at 30 June 2018 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary Principal activity Country of Incorporation Proportion of
and principal place of ownership interest and
business voting rights held by

the group
2018 2017
Arena Coventry Limited* Management of the England and Wales 100% 100%
Ricoh Arena
Arena Coventry (2006) Management of the o ’ o
Limited lease of the Ricoh Arena England and Wales 100% 100%
Hospitality, catering

IEC Experience Limited and facilities England and Wales 77% 77%

management

Canmango Limited* Dormant England and Wales 100% 100%

*indicates direct investment of Wasps Holdings Limited,

The registered address for all of the above companies is the same as for Wasps Holdings
Ltd, being Judds Lane, Longford, Coventry, CV6 6AQ.

For information on the financial information of IEC Experience Limited, please refer to their financial statements
available at Companles House.

On the 14th July 2018, the Board agreed a long-term strategic partnership with global hospitality giants, Delaware
North Companies (UK) Hospitality Services Limited. This arrangement ended the joint venture agreement between
IEC Experience Limited and Compass Group UK Limited which was in place for the year ended 30 June 2018. This
resulted in the shareholding of IEC Experience Limited increasing from 77% to 100%.

Summary of the company investments 2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Investments in subsidiaries (as previously reported) 5,917 5,717
Investments in subsidiaries (impact of restatement note 2}) - 200
Investments in subsldiarles (as restated) 5,917 5,917
Subsidiarles 2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Carrylng amount (as previously reported) 5,917 5,717
Carrying amount (impact of restatement note 2) - 200
Carrying amount in subsidiarles (as restated) 5,917 5,917
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15 Available for sale financial assets

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Non-current financial assets
Available for sale financial assets 9,725 9,725 9,725 9,725

Movement in availabte for sale assets - Group and Company

2018 2017
£'000 £'000

Cost

At 1July 9,725 9,725
Revaluation - -
At 30 June 9,725 9,725

Carrying amount
At 30 June 9,725 8,725

Available for sale financial assets comprise the Group's holding of P shares in Premier Rugby Limited. They
have been presented at their fair value resulting in no change in thelr revaluation £9,725k (2017: £9,725k).
The basis of this valuation is the Net Present Value of contracted income for Premier Rughy Limited,
discounted at 6% and multiplied by 1.5 times as prescribed in the Premier Rugby Limited Shareholders'
Agreement. This reflects the fair value of the P shares if sold, which can only occur as prescribed In the Premier
Rugby Limited Shareholders Agreement. Management have reviewed the valuation in accordance with IFRS
13 in the current year and have no reason to change it. Per guldance within IFRS 13, management have based
their measure of fair value based on level 3 inputs (i.e. the best information avalilable in the circumstances)
in the absence of level 1 or 2 inputs (i.e. quoted market prices).

16 Inventories

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Merchandise 231 256 231 166
Consumables 278 174 - -
Inventories 509 430 231 166

Stock is stated after provision for impalrment of £15k (2017: £15k).
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17 Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
{as restated {as restated
note 2) note 2)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade Receivables 3,191 3,456 1,150 1,456
Provision for the impairment of trade receivables {7) (10) (5) (5)
Net trade receivables 3,184 3,440 1,145 1,451
Loans to related parties - - - 165
Accrued income 234 1,080 164 824
Prepayments . 940 1,045 353 337
Other receivables 3,307 493 2,975 506
Total current trade and other receivables 7,665 6,064 4,637 3,283

The fair value of those trade and other receivables classified as financial instrument loans and receivables are
disclosed in the financial instruments note.

The Group's exposure to credit and market risks, including impairments and allowances for credit losses, relating to
trade and other recelvables Is disclosed in note "Financial risk management and Impairment of financial assets -
company".

The disclosure of the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired is not deemed applicable
due to the mix of the customer base and the low rate of default.

As of 30 June 2018, Group trade receivables of £902k (2017: £1,440k) and Company trade receivables of £669k
(2017: £259k) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there
is no recent history of default.

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables that are past due but not impaired Is as follows:

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Up to 3 months 624 1,187 393 125
3 to 6 months 212 47 212 14
6 months to 1 year 32 139 29 65
Over 1 year 34 67 33 58
902 1,440 667 262

The provision for impairment of trade receivables {analysed below) is the difference between the carrying value and
the present value of the expected proceeds.

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Over 1 year 7 10
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18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Cash at bank

19 Share Capltal

Allotted, called up and fully paid shares

Alloted, called up and fully pald shares
Ordinary shares of £1 each
"B" Ordinary shares of £1 each

Group Company
2018 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000

2018 2017

No, £'000 No. £'000
760,039 760 760,039 760
15,511 16 15,511 16
775,550 776 775,550 776

The share classes in issue have separate rights to dividends. In all other respects the shares rank pari passu.

20 Loans and other creditors

Non-current loans and Creditors
Other borrowings
Unamortised borrowing costs

Current loans and borrowlings
Bank overdraft (net)
Other borrowings

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
52,287 46,926 46,721 40,731
(446} (562) (446) (562)
51,841 46,364 46,275 40,169
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
3,463 1,543 3,844 1,161
563 399 25 82
4,026 1,942 3,869 1,243
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Group

The balance of the loan from Wasps Finance PLC was £33.8m (2017: £33.8m). The loan Is repayable in a lump
sum repayment in 2022 and is subject to an interest rate of 6.5%.

In the current year the Group borrowed £0.3m from Close Finance, the balance at 30 June 2018 was £0.025m
(2017: £0.1m).

In the prior year the Group borrowed £0.17m from PEAC Finance, the balance at 30 June 2018 was £0.1m
{2017: £0.1m).

In the prior year the Group borrowed £0.11m from Bute Finance, the balance at 30 June 2018 was £0.1m (2017:
£0.1m).

The Group also owes £0.1m under asset finance as at 30 June 2018 (2017: £0.1m).

In the current year the Group had net overdrafts totalling £3.5m at the year-end (2017: £1.5m), at Barclays
Bank plc (Overdrawn - £3,8m) and HS8C (£0.3m).

In the prior year the Group borrowed £0.8m from HSBC PLC, the balance at 30 June 2018 was £0.2m (2017:
£0.5m). The Loan is repayable over a 36-month period and s unsecured.

The Group has also been provided with a loan of £18.6m (2017: £12.9m} from D A Richardson. The interest has
been waived for the year. The loan is at 4% above Barclays Bank PLC base rate and is repayable after giving 12

months and ane day's notice.
Company

In the year the Company has borrowed £19.4m (2017: £19.4m) from Wasps Finance PLC. The loan is repayable
In 3 lump sum repayment in 2022 and is subject to an interest rate of 6.5%.

The Company has also been provided with a loan of £16.7m (2017: £10.9m) from D A Richardson. The loan
interest has been waived for the year and repayable after giving 12 months and one day’s notice.

The Company had an overdraft at Barclays bank Plc of £3.8m at the year-end (2017: £1.1m). The Company has

also been provided with a loan of £10.6m (2017: £10.6m) from a subsidiary Company, Canmango Limited. The
loan is interest free and repayable after 12 months and one day's notice.
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21 Leases

Group
QOperating leases

The total future value of minimum lease payments is as follows:

June 2018

2018 2017

£'000 £'000

Within one year 100 107 ‘

in two to five years 191 291

291 398 .

The amount of non-cancellable operating lease payments recognised as an expense during the year was £107k :
(2017: £79K). :
i

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:
2018 2017 i

£000 £000

Within one year 553 573
After one year but not more than five years 700 1,057
More than five years 276 472
1,529 2,102

22 Pension and other schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents
contributions payable by the Group to the scheme and amounted to £108k (2017: £136k).

23 Trade and other payables

Current trade and other payables Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017 :

(as restated {as restated

note 2) note 2)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Trade Payables 9,468 6,662 5,536 5,630
Accrued expenses 1,716 2,126 513 1,154
Social security and other taxes 1,056 1,255 764 984
Other payables 428 256 126 - ‘
12,668 10,299 6,939 7,768 !

The fair value of the trade and other payables classified as financial instruments
Instruments note. The Group's exposure to market and fiquidity risks, including mat
and other payables is disclosed in note 26 "Financial risk management and impairm
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Non- current trade and other payables Group Company

, 2018 2017 2018 2017
1 (as restated

note 2)

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Other creditors 1,879 1,764 -

‘ 1,879 1,764 - -

Other creditors falling due after one year represents ACL’s gbligation to repurchase Compass Group’s 23%
sharehalding in IEC in June 2030. This liahility has been discounted at 6.5%. :

24 Deferred income

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
(as restated
note 2)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Non-current Deferred Income
Licence fee 4,867 5,599 - -
Other - 9 - -
4,867 5,608 - -
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
' Current Deferred Income
Licence fee 467 467 - -
Season tickets 1,418 1,274 1,419 1,274
Sponsorship 800 1,206 424 715
Other 1,655 1,738 695 1,134
4,341 4,685 2,538 3,123

Revenue received in relation to license fees is Included in deferred income and released to income over the life of
the license.

As at 14 july 2018, Arena Coventry Ltd terminated Its contract with Compass resuiting in the unamortised balance
on the license fee deferred income becoming payable to Compass and acquired its 8 shares in IEC Experience

Umited.
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25 Financial instruments

Group
Financlal assets
Carrying value Fair Value
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents - - - -
Loans and receivables 6,491 3,839 6,491 3,839
6,491 3,839 6,491 3,839

Valuation methods and assumptions

There Is no difference between the total carrying amount and the fair value of trade receivables and cash and
cash equivalents. Further detail of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables can be found in

notes 17 and 18.

Available for sale

Carrying value Fair Value
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Shared in Premiership Rugby Limited 9,725 9,725 9,725 9,725
9,725 9,725 9,725 9,725

Shares in Premiership Rugby Limited: The Group's and the Company's share in Premier Rugby Limited has been
valued by reference to the Premiership Rugby Shareholders' Agreement. There Is no difference between the
total carrying value and the fair value of available for sale assets. Further detail can be found in note 15.

Financial liabilities (held at amortised cost)

Carrying value Fair Value
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables 11,775 8,682 11,775 8,682
Borrowings 56,312 48,868 56,312 48,868
68,087 57,550 68,087 57,550

Description of instruments

Trade and other payables:
Further details of Group trade and other payables can be found in note 23.

Borrowings:
Further details of Group borrowings can be found in note 20.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. There is no difference between the total carrying value and
the fair value of trade and other payables.
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Company

Financial assets

Carrying value Falr Value
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents - - - -
Trade and other recelvables 4,120 1,957 4,120 1,957
4,120 1,957 4,120 1,957

Valuation methods and assumptions

There is no difference between the total carrying amount of trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Further detail of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables can be found in notes 17 and 18.

Financial liabllities {held at amortised cost)

Carrying value Falr Value
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'00 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables 5,662 5,630 5,662 5,630
Borrowings 50,589 41,974 50,589 41,974
56,251 47,604 56,251 47,604

Trade and other payables:
Further detalls of company trade and other payable can be found in note 23.

Borrowings:
Further details of company borrawings can be found in note 20.

Financial liabillties measured at fair value.
26 Financlal risk management and impairment of financial assets

The Group is exposed to risks arising from the use of financial instruments. This note describes the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them.

The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financlal instruments risk arises, are trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recelvables and financial liabilities.

The Group is exposed through Its operations to the fallowing financial Instrument risk: credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policy for managing these risks is set by the Board. The overall objective of the Board is to set policies
that reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the Group's competitiveness and flexibility. The
policy for each of the above risks Is described in more detail below.

Credit risk and impairment

Credit risk arises from the Group's trade and other receivables. It is the risk that the counterparty fails to
discharge their obligation in respect of the instrument. The Group is mainly exposed to credit risk from credit
sales, [t is the Group's policy, Implemented locally, to assess the credit risk of new customers before entering
into contracts. Such credit ratings are then factored into the credit assessment process to determine the
appropriate credit limit for each customer. The Group does not enter inta derivatives to manage credit risk.
The carrying amount represents managements view of the best estimate of the Group’s maximum exposure.
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Wasps Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

All cash is held with A-rated banks.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Group's management of working capital and the finance charges on its
borrowings. It is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall
due.

The liquidity of each Group company is managed locally and monitored by the Board at Group level. The level
of the Group's facilities is approved periodically by the Board and negotiated with the Group's current bankers.
At the balance sheet date, cash flow projections were considered by the Board and the Group Is forecast to
have sufficient funds avallable funding facilities to meet obligations as they fall due, under all reasonably
expected circumstances. We continue to monitor the working capital requirements and tailor the financing
requirements to ensure the Group will have sufficient funds to finance its ongolng trading requirements.

Maturity analysis
2018 After1to 15

Within 6 months After 1 year Total
years
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Trade and other payables 12,668 - 1,879 14,547
Other borrowings 4,026 18,459 33,828 56,312
16,694 18,459 35,707 70,860
2017 After 1 to 15
Within 6 months After 1 year ertto Total
years
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables 9,060 - 1,764 10,824
Other borrowings 1,942 13,108 33,818 48,868
11,002 13,108 35582 59,692
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Group
2017 Cash flows Other 2018
Short-term borrowings 1,942 2,084 - 4,026
Long-term borrowings 46,364 2,862 2,615 51,841
Total liabilities from
financing activities 48,306 4,946 2,615 55,867
Group
2016 Cash flows Other 2017
Short-term borrowings 250 1,692 - 1,942
Long-term borrowings 42,715 3,534 115 46,364
Total liabilities from
financing activities 42,965 5,226 115 48,306
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Company
2017 Cash flows Other 2018
Short-term borrowings 1,243 2,626 - 3,869
Long-term borrowings 40,169 3,491 2,615 46,275
Total liabilities from
financing activities 41,412 6,117 2,615 50,144
Company
2016 Cash flows Other 2017
Short-term barrowings - 1,243 - 1,243
Long-term borrowings 38,200 1,854 115 40,169
Total liabilitles from
financing activitles 38,200 3,097 115 41,412

In the year ended 30 June 2018 for the Group and Company, the "Other" column represents payments received
after the year-end and the effect of the amortisation of transaction costs relating to the Wasps Finance PLC
bond being amortised over the period to May 2022. In the year ended 30 June 2017 for the Group and
Company, the "Other" column represents the effect of the amortisation of transaction costs relating to the
Wasps Finance PLC bond being amortised over the period to May 2022,

Capital risk management

Capital companents .

The Group is both equity and debt funded, and these two elements combine to make up the capital structure
of the business. Equily comprises share capital, share premium and reserves and is equal to the amount shown
as 'Total equity' in the balance sheet. Debt comprises non-convertible loans as set out in note 20.

Capital management
The Group's objectives when maintaining capital are:

To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing
praducts and services commensurately with the fevel of risk. '

The Group sets the amount of capital it requires in proportion to risk. The Group manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it In the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintaln or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

During the year ended 30 june 2018, the Group's strategy, which is unchanged from the previous year, was to
keep net debt to a minimum, through profitable trading and good cash management.
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27 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Year ended 30 June 2016)

2016 '
(as restated
note 2)
£'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 58,027 :
Intangible assets 389 1
Availabie for sale financial assets 9,725 :
68,141 ¢
Current assets
Inventories 286 ‘
Trade and other receivables 5,482 }
Cash and cash equivalents 279 i
6,047 :
Total assets 74,188
A
Equity and Liabilities ,,
Equity
Share Capital (776) i
Share Premium {6,341) ‘
Revaluation reserve (23,833)
Capital contribution reserve - :
Available for sale reserve (7,974) B
Other reserve 1,656 ,
Accumulated losses 33,320
Equity attributable to owners of the company (3,948)
Non-controlling interests (671)
Total Equity (4,619)
Non-current liabllities
Loans and borrowings (42,715) .
Other payables (1,649)
Deferred tax liabilities {4,099)
Deferred Income (6,066)
(54,529) :
Current liabilities 1
Trade and other payables (12,566) :
Loans and borrowings (250) }
Deferred income (2,224) :
{15,040)
Total liabilities (69,569)
Total equity and liabllities (74,188) i
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Assets
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investments

Available for sale financial assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and Liabilitias

Equity )

Share Capital

Share Premium

Capital contribution reserve
Avallable for sale reserve
Accumuliated losses

Total Equity

Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings

Current liabilitles
Trade and other payables
Deferred income

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Wasps Holdings Limited
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- 2016

(as restated
note 2)
£'000

673
5917
9,725

16,315

160
2,740

2,907
19,222

(776)
(6,341)

{7,974)
42,901
27,810

(38,200)
(38,200)

(7,422)

(1,410)
(8,832)

(47,032)

{19,222)
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29 Related party transactions

Loans from related parties - D A Richardson

2018 £'000
1 Jufy 2017 12,855
Capltal projects . (745)
Community expenditure (758)
Advanced and committed 7,260
30 June 2018 18,612
2017 £'000
1July 2016 9,086
Repaid (132)
Community expenditure {387)
Advanced and committed 4,888
30 June 2017 12,855

Letheby & Christopher Ltd (a company in which a director of IEC Experience Limited sits on the Board)

The Group received income of £664k {2017: £525k) and at the year end was owed £Nil (2017: £Nil). The Group
incurred costs of £7,775k (2017: £7,329k) and at the end of the year owed £5,746k (2017: £2,624k). Usual
commercial terms of business apply.

Kennedys Law LLP (an LLP in which R Dawbarn has an Interest)
The Group received income of £1k (2017: ENil) and at the year-end was owed £NIt (2017 £Nil). The Group

incurred costs of £391k (2017: £88k), and at the year end owed £162k (2017: £86k)}. Usual commercial terms
of business apply.

Keith Prowse Limited (a company in which a director of IEC Experlence Limited sits on the Board)
The Group received income of £4k (2017: £1k). There were no outstanding amounts at the year end (2017:
£Nil). Usual commercial terms of business apply.

Premiership Rugby Limited (a company in which a director of Wasps Holdings Limited sits on the Board)
The Group recelved income of £5,339k (2017: £4,088k), incurred costs of £277k (2017: £235k) and at the year-
end was awed £250k {2017: £115k). Usual commercial terms of business apply.

Twickenham Experience Limited (a company in which a director of IEC Experience Limited sits on the Board)
The Group incurred costs of £4k (2017: £3k}. There were no outstanding amounts at the year end (2017: £N).
Usual commercial terms of business apply.

8BH Limited {a company in which L Dallaglio Is a director)
The Group incurred costs of £30k (2017: £30k). The amount outstanding at the year end was £36k (2017: £Nil).
Usual commercial terms of business apply.

Wasps Finance PLC (a company with the same controlling party as Wasps Holdings Limited)
The Group incurred, and pald, finance charges of £2,275k (2017: £2,275k) In the year. Usual commercial terms
of business apply.

Scutum Internatianal S.A. (previously Orion Security Limited and company in which a director of Wasps
Holdings Limited sits on the Board)

The Group received income of £147k (2017: £16k) in the year. The amount outstanding at the year-end was
£Nil. Usual commercial terms of buslness apply.
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WNTG Ltd (a company in which a director of Wasps Haldings Limited sits on the Board)
The Group incurred costs of behalf of WNTG Ltd of £25k (2017: £1k) in the year. The amount outstanding at
the year-end was £26k (2017: £1k). Usual commercial terms of business apply.

WPS Trading Ltd (a company in which a director of Wasps Holdings Limited sits on the Board)
The Group received income of £22k (2017: £Nil) in the year. The amount outstanding at the year-end was £26k

(2017: £26k). Usual commercial terms of business apply.

30 Post Balance sheet events

On the 14 July 2018, IEC Experience Limited agreed a long-term strategic partnership with glabal haspitality
giants, Delaware North Companies (UK) Hospitality Services Limited. They are a global leader in hospitality with
unique knowledge of working with venues like ourselves both here in the UK and abroad. This arrangement
ended the joint venture agreement between IEC Experience Limited and Compass Group UK Limited which was
in place for the year ended 30 June 2018 and as part of this termination Arena Coventry timited purchased the

23 B shares held by the Compass group.

During July 2017, the High Court dismissed a claim that Coventry City Council's extension of ACL's lease on the
Ricoh Arena in 2013 represented state aid. In November 2017 the Court of Appeal upheld a challenge on one
aspect of this ruling, and a court hearing was held in June 2018. The directors have taken advice and are
satisfied that this claim has no merit. The court decision was released on 12 October 2018 and dismissed the
challenge. On 19 October 2018, the Court of Appeal refused permission to appeal to the Supreme Court.

31 Control

The Company's immediate parent is Moonstone Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Malta, which is
ultimately controiled by D A Richardson (the uitimate shareholder).
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